
 
Town of Carolina Shores 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 
July 10, 2023, 10:00 am 

 
 

Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence  
Call to Order 
I.    Administrative Report 

1. Administrative Reports 
a. Administration Department 
b. Building Inspections 
c. Public Works Department 
d. Public Safety Department 
e. Finance Department 

2. Committee & Volunteer Group Reports 
II. Consent Agenda:  

a. BOC Regular Meeting Minutes 6-12-2023 
b. BOC Special Called Meeting Minutes 6-26-2023 

III. Old Business: None 
IV.  New Business 

a. Discussion of Town Hall Security System 
b. Discussion of Pickleball Court 
c. Discussion of Cleaning Main Canals 

V. Public Comment 
VI. Mayor and Board of Commissioner Comments 
VII. Closed Session:  None 
VIII. Adjourn  

 





TOWN OF CAROLINA SHORES 
NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 

      
   

 
  

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:  Mayor and Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM: Chad Hicks, Town Administrator 
 
SUBJECT: July 2023 Administrative Report  
 
DATE:  7/5/2023 
 
ENCL:  None 
 
CC:  File 

 
 
Administration: 
Staff has been busy opening the books on a new fiscal year.  This month is very busy in the 
Finance Department.  The Fee Schedule has been placed on the website.   
 
Follow-up from June Commission Meeting:  
We are still working with Catalys on the website updates.  
 
Public Works: 
Staff has asked for bids on potentially pouring a concrete slab for bands to setup on concert 
dates.  The cost of this would be about $5,000.  We have had some bands ask us to try to do 
something different than the plywood we use now.  We are still advertising for the Heavy 
Equipment Operator in Public Works. 
 
Inspections: 
The full detailed report for June inspections is included in the agenda packet. 
 
Finance: 
Lori Frye will give financial report. 
(report is included in the agenda packet) 
 
Projects: 
Drainage 
No capital projects this fiscal year. 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 
Roadway: 
East Coast Engineering is working with our attorney on paving contract documents. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS REPORT 
TOWN OF CAROLINA SHORES 

June 2023 
 
 
Single Family Residence 15 
Total Cost of Construction  
(Stick built – SF) 

$3,880,007 

  
Multi- Unit Housing 0 
Total Cost of Construction- Multi-Unit  
 

$0 

Modular Home Permits 1 
Total Cost of Construction – Modular $63,480 
  
Manufactured Home Permits 0 
Total Cost of Construction – 
Manufactured Homes 

 

  
Commercial/Industrial Building Permits 0 
Total Cost of Construction  
Commercial/Industrial Building 

$0 

TOTAL BUILDING PERMIT 
CONSTRUCTION VALUATION 

$3,943,487 

Other Building Permits (i.e. Addition, 
fence, deck, garage, shed, sunroom, mail 
station, concrete/asphalt paving, roof over 
deck, windows) construction valuation 

$0 

Building Permits 31 
Floodplain Permits 31 
Electrical Permits 5 
Driveway Permits 2 
Mechanical Permits/Gas Permits 26 
Zoning Permits 16 
Plumbing Permits 5 
Sign Commercial 0 
Inspections Completed 793 
Reinspection fees collected $2,900 
New Homes Currently under Construction 200 
Certificate of Occupancy Certificates 12 
TOTAL CERTIFICATE OF 
OCCUPANCY (CONSTRUCTION 
VALUATION)  

$3,072,672 

PERMIT FEE REVENUE $65,573.74 
YEAR TO DATE PERMIT REVENUE $811,487.44 

 
 

 

 



TOWN MAINTENANCE REPORT

ZONES 1 and 2 Description Column1 Date2 Date3

ZONE 1
Zone 1-2 -Service Request -  9 W. Pine - roadside ditch - 12 Court 
4 - Streetlight - 5 Arden Place - Back ditch.

ZONE 2

Zone 2- 4- Service Request -  55 Carolina Shores Parkway - 
Driveway culvert - 7 Landing Court - roadside ditc - 5 Landing 
Court - Leaning tree. - 5 Niblick - washout -  

ZONES 3 and 4 Description Column 2 Date2 Date3

Zone 3

Zone 3  6 Service Request  898 Palmer Drive  roadside ditch  
1057 Cedar Court - washout - 41 Sunfield Drive - roadside ditch - 
1084 Waterview Drive - roadside ditch - 1 Pelican Court - 
roadside ditch.

Zone 4 Zone 4-1- Service Request-    169 Calabash Lakes Blvd. back ditch 

 

Maintenance Division Description Date Date2 Date3

Trash Pick up
Daily Trash pick up in each zone and 
Persimmion,Thomasboro,Country Club and each zone.

Equipment Maintenance Clean,Grease,Service,Repair,Fill with fuel daily.

Equipment Repair
New Holland tractor - Cut off switch - Still waiting on parts to 
come in on the recalls for the Ford trucks. Batteries for two 
vehicles.

Town Hall
Painting the trim at town hall as been slowed because of the 
rain. The trim at the park has been completed. 

Materials Order and pick up all materials needed for each job.
Service Request Complete all service request in a timely manner.
Safety Conducted Monthly safety meeting and tailgate safety meetings.
Radio Test On 04/26/2023 Conducted Radio test for Town equipment. 
Fire Extinguisher On 06/21/2023 Conducted Fire Extinguisher Inspection.

Town Park
We are currenty getting quotes for an additional pickelball court 
at the town park.

Roadside ditches We are currently working on Midiron drive.

Recycle Center

On 5/19/2023 the driver for GFL hit the gate entering the recycle 
center. The gate is beyond repair and must be replaced. Still 
waiting for the gates to be replaced.
 

Beacon Towns
Ordered new street signs. Waiting on the post. Because they are 
powder coated it takes twice as long to get the post. 

The Farm
The Farm has requested that the town replace all of their street 
signs. 

Training Continue to do daily safety meetings. 

Ending Date: 6/30/2023



Operations

We have started asphalt patching. Still working in zone one 
roadside ditch work. Repairing washouts on roadside ditches as 
well as the canals. Replaced drain pipe under the street at Gate 
11. Preperations for the concert. 

Employees

Ethan Mercer took and passed his written test for his Class A 
permit. Alex Gore past his pesticide test. We are still 
interviewing for the vacant position. 

Page 2 of 2



Code Compliance Officer Report  
June 1-30, 2023 

 
June 1  

New Resident Welcome Orientation.10 residents in attendance.  

June 3  

Routine Patrol  

Dog was not on a leash in Calabash Lakes. I contacted the dog’s owner, and he was 
told to secure the dog on a leash. 

June 6   

Monthly report  

Parking complaint Carolina Commons Shopping Center.  

I gave the manager of a business a copy of the sign ordinances and a sign permit form. 
He advised he wanted a highly illuminated sign. I advised him a highly illuminated sign 
would not be compliant with the Town’s Ordinance.  

June 8  

New Residence Welcome Orientation. 17 residents in attendance.  

June 10  

Observed landscaper cut brush and threw it into wooded lot on Calabash Drive. I had 
the individuals pick up the debris and advised them that civil charges could be issued to 
them if their actions continue.  

I picked up 12 signs from the roadway.  

A motor vehicle crash occurred when a resident drove out of Recycle Center onto 
Persimmon and struck a vehicle going east bound. There were minor injuries. The 
overtime deputy responded and took the accident report.  

June 13  

Service request. Resident complained that chickens were coming into her backyard and 
tearing up her mulch. I located the owner at the farm which was behind her residence. 
She stated she would make sure her chickens were in their pen and not running loose. 

A Violation letter was written regarding resident needing to cut overhanging tree limbs.  

 



June 15  

Service request. Children observed driving a street legal golf cart around the 
neighborhood of Eagle Run.  

Suspicious person’s:  Two ladies walking on the Carolina Shores Golf Course. The 
Sheriff’s Office was called to investigate.  

 New Resident Welcome Orientation. 18 residents in attendance.  

June 17  

I conducted routine patrol.  

June 20  

Contacted Carolina Shores POA Office regarding obtaining information on a house on 
East Pine Court.  

Attempted to call owner at 9 East Pine Court.  

June 22  

Service request noise complaint coming from Creek Harbor Lane. I contacted the 
resident. He stated his neighbor plays music late at night. I advised him to contact the 
Sheriff’s Office and keep a record for progressive enforcement to take place. Attempts 
to contact the neighbor failed as they would not answer the door.  

June 24 

An exterminating company “Rid” had two persons going around knocking on door 
soliciting business. I advised them soliciting was not allowed in the Town limits.  

 I conducted routine patrol.  

June 27  

Service request: A dog was off its leash on Calabash Court. Contacted the owner of the 
dog. They advised they would keep their dog in their yard or on a leash.  

Service request food truck in driveway Lighthouse Cove. The owner of the food truck 
said he was in the process of selling the truck and would have it out of his driveway 
soon. 

Follow-up with “Rid” exterminators no soliciting.  

2 at shopping center playing music with written statement for soliciting money. Upon 
speaking with them, they left the Shopping Center.  

June 29  

Service request overnight parking in Lighthouse Cove.  



 

 

Sheriff’s Patrol Activity  

9 Warnings  

Check for overnight parking in all neighborhoods.  

1 alarm  

1 welfare check  

1 dog bite  

1 vehicle fire  

1 911 hang up.  



























1  

 

TOWN OF CAROLINA SHORES 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
         June 12, 2023 

     10:00 a.m. 

 

DRAFT 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Davis called the June 12, 2023, meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. The Pledge of 
Allegiance was recited. Commissioners present: Beverly Mayhew, Bill Brennan, Debbie Watts, and 
Marlene Vandergrift. Also, present: Chad Hicks, Town Administrator; Nicole Hewett, Assistant 
Town Administrator/Town Clerk; and Lori Frye, Finance Director.  
 

Members Absent:  None 
 
Also Absent:  None 
 
Public Hearing 2023/24 FY Budget: 

 
COMMISSIONER WATTS MADE A MOTION TO OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING ON THE 
FY 2023/24 BUDGET. COMMISSIONER BRENNAN SECONDED THE MOTION. MAYOR 
PRO TEM DAVIS CALLED FOR A VOTE AND MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS 
VOTE. 
 
Public Comments on Public Hearing: 
 
Brian Haggerty, 796 Haystack Way - Mr. Haggerty said he thinks that we could reduce the .10% 
you are proposing. Mr. Haggerty said that is a 67% increase in revenue per home. Mr. Haggerty said 
think about that plus you tax our cars, plus we pay for fire separate, that is way too much. Mr. 
Haggerty said the acreages that is being turned into homes, that’s about 4,500% increase in revenue 
for the Town. Mr. Haggerty said the developer pays for all the roads and infrastructure; we don’t 
pay for it. Mr. Haggerty said they pay for everything. Mr. Haggerty said they pay for you to come 
out and inspect it, they pay for the roads, sewer, they have to meet a standard. Mr. Haggerty said he 
hasn’t had his road paved. Mr. Haggerty said The Farm community is what 20 years old. Mr. 
Haggerty said he’s been there for 7 years, and he doesn’t see a need for it. Mr. Haggerty said 
someone made a comment that the average bill is going to go up $75.00, well that’s 10 days’ worth 
of groceries. Mr. Haggerty said if $75.00 doesn’t mean that much to ya, then you can pay my tax 
increase which is more than $75.00. Mr. Haggerty said think about that. Mr. Haggerty said he does 
want to thank the Town, Chad and the rest of the employees here, they are a ton better than when he 
first moved here. Mr. Haggerty said when you come into Town Hall, they are nice, friendly and 
that’s what we are supposed to have. Mr. Haggerty said before he didn’t even want to come up here. 
Mr. Haggerty said trust me, there were some pretty interesting people that worked here. Mr. 
Haggerty said 67% is way too much, maybe you should look at maybe .07, not 67%. Mr. Haggerty 
said the rate of inflation according to our Federal Government is 3 to 4%, that’s a lie. Mr. Haggerty 
said 67% is way too much, thank you. 
 
Doug Bonestroo, 1400 Fencepost Lane – Mr. Bonestroo said with the 67% increase, he will go door 
to door, every home in this city if that is what you are going to try to move forward with and let 
them know what you are trying to do. 
 
 



2  

Ron Delanis, 5 Sage Court – Mr. Delanis said our house is assessed as he understands by tax 
assessors, how do they approach that price? Mr. Delanis said also, how do they approach the tax 
increase level, how is that reached? Mr. Delanis said he is curious about that. Mr. Delanis said so 
very little can be done by talking to you about the assessment.  Mr. Delanis said thank you. 
 
John Bennett, 23 Bayberry Circle – Mr. Bennett said he worked for the Town for like 10 ½ years. 
Mr. Bennett said he wants to know what they are going to do about the ditches in the Town. Mayor 
Pro Tem Davis said this public comment time is for the public hearing on the budget and he could 
discuss that later on in the agenda. Mr. Bennett said on the budget, you can get a discount on your 
taxes. Mr. Bennett said he had it done, and it helps out, you can get your taxes cut in half if you go 
through the paperwork and it’s not hard to do. Mr. Bennett said with all the building going on 
around here, your taxes are going to go up even more. Mr. Bennett said when he came down here, it 
was $50.00 per lot and it’s $200.00 now. Thank you. 
 
Vicki Barbetto, 13 Oakbark Court – Ms. Barbetto said she is under the understanding that all of our 
homes are being increased to market value. Ms. Barbetto said when you look at that, it is roughly a 
40% increase in our homes as per the market. Ms. Barbetto said this meeting is in reference to the 
tax rate is that what you call it. Ms. Barbetto said, “so you are looking at doing both increases on the 
burden of the people at the same time. Ms. Barbetto said all because of the obscene huge increase 
from the County. Ms. Barbetto said she is also concerned because with these increases, comes 
increases in homeowners’ insurance. Ms. Barbetto said everywhere you look food, utilities, gas and 
everything has to be all at once, she doesn’t understand that. Mayor Pro Tem Davis said the Town 
has those same increases for projects, etc. Ms. Barbetto said why are we doing that, who is asking 
for these projects. Ms. Barbetto said she feels there should be a moratorium on some of this stuff. 
Ms. Barbetto said our infrastructure is suffering. Ms. Barbetto said what is going to happen with our 
water systems? Ms. Barbetto asked why the people aren’t allowed to see that budget. Mayor Pro 
Tem Davis said you can see the budget. Ms. Hewett said it was advertised in the Brunswick Beacon 
that it was available for public inspections and posted on the website. Ms. Hewett said at any time, 
anyone can come and look at the budget or get a copy of it. Ms. Barbetto said so there is no happy 
medium anywhere, this is basically what you are saying. Ms. Barbetto said she will be honest; she 
would not want to be in your shoes. Ms. Barbetto said if this stuff was happening in her home, she 
would have to figure out something. 
 
Rob Morehouse, 6 Pineridge Court – Mr. Morehouse said you mentioned that the property taxes 
went up and then the Town gets it cut from the County. Mr. Morehouse asked about all the 
developments coming in and they are impacting our infrastructure as well. Mr. Morehouse said there 
will be more money coming in. Mr. Morehouse said the new developments are put on higher 
ground, which puts the old developments at risk of flooding. 
 
Chris Chirco, 253 Downing Glen – Mr. Chirco said you mentioned that these developers come in 
and put in new roads that we are responsible for maintaining. Mr. Chirco said can’t you pass that on 
to the developers, there is no way to do that? Mr. Chirco said you can’t tell them no, stop building. 
Mayor Pro Tem Davis and Mr. Hicks both said no. 
 
COMMISSIONER BRENNAN MADE A MOTION TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING ON 
THE FY 2023/24 BUDGET. COMMISSIONER WATTS SECONDED THE MOTION. MAYOR 
PRO TEM DAVIS CALLED FOR A VOTE AND MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS 
VOTE. 
 
Administrative Reports: Mr. Hicks gave the Town Administrator Report. (A copy of this report is 
on file.) 
 



3  

Mr. Hicks said we went to the 2023 Hurricane Preparedness conference at the County. Mr. Hicks 
said we are ready and hurricane season started a couple of days ago. Mr. Hicks said Mrs. Treglia 
has done two New Resident Orientation meetings and they are really good. Mr. Hicks said we had 
a little incident at the Recycle Center with the GFL truck and we are working on that and sorry for 
any inconvenience. Mr. Hicks said we should have all the ditches done in Carolina Shores 
hopefully within 8-10 weeks. Mr. Hicks said Mr. Potter is here today. Mr. Hicks said remember the 
erosion problem we had behind his house on Palm Court in The Village, Jackson is currently 
working on a design to try to get erosion under control. Mr. Hicks said it has been a problem for 
two years and we are working on a solution. Mayor Pro Tem Davis asked how close it is to his 
home. Mr. Potter said 33 feet from the edge of his property to the back porch, of that 22 feet is 
ditch and then 8 feet to the porch. Mr. Potter said that is the Town easement. Mr. Potter explained 
his previous work experience. Mr. Potter said you already have two pipes on the left and he knows 
you don’t want to put in a pipe but basically it is six feet deep from the top of the surface. Mr. 
Potter said a 48-inch pipe would handle it. Mr. Hicks said that is all East Coast Engineering does. 
Mr. Potter said that Chad has been great and always responds and takes his calls. Mr. Hicks said 
this was before his time and he discovered it last week as there is some history to it. Mr. Hicks said 
The Farm has a bunch of those pretty road signs in there. Mr. Hicks said we don’t have the ability 
to build those signs. Mr. Hicks said there was an agreement with The Farm, and it was that if The 
Farm decided not to maintain the signs, the Town would take them over and the Town would get a 
$3,000.00 check. Mr. Hicks said it does look like they are going to exercise that option and if they 
do, he will have no choice but to take them over. Mr. Hicks said that we are using a decorative 
black pole. Mr. Hicks said that will be about another $25,000.00. Mr. Hicks said they meet 
NCDOT standards. 
 
Building Inspections: Report on File.  
 
Public Works Department: Report on file.  
 
Public Safety Department: Report on file.  
 
Finance Report:  Ms. Frye gave the Finance Report. Ms. Frye said the interest for the month was 
$17,389.86. The full report is on file. 
 
Committee & Volunteer Group Reports:  

 

Commissioner Brennan (GSATS) – None 
 
Commissioner Watts (Planning Board) – Commissioner Watts said our last meeting was May 17th      

Commissioner Watts said Diane Baker and Harry McClard were sworn in as new members. 
Commissioner Watts said the minutes from the April 19th meeting were approved. Commissioner 
Watts said administration is working on the Publix annexation. Commissioner Watts said a motion 
was made and passed to not allow retail sales in Industrial District Zones. Commissioner Watts said 
there was discussion on the open meeting laws and as Niki has previously said, all meetings are 
open to the public unless it is a Closed Session. Mr. Hicks said Publix is in our ETJ and he is trying 
to get them into the corporate limits. 
 
Commissioner Vandergrift (Parks Commission) - Commissioner Vandergrift said the Parks 
Commission met on May 17th. Commissioner Vandergrift said Carroll Murphy was sworn in as a 
new member. Commissioner Vandergrift said member Ronald Johnson was selected as the new 
vice-chairperson. Commissioner Vandergrift said there was discussion on preparing for the concert 
which was well attended. Commissioner Vandergrift said the Parks Commission was discussing the 
dog park again concerning visitors not cleaning up after their dogs. Commissioner Vandergrift said 



4  

there was going to be research done on Shallotte’s dog park and a couple of others to see how they 
handle the smell. Commissioner Vandergrift said there was discussion about adding another 
pickleball court and Mr. Hicks was going to check on that. Commissioner Vandergrift said there 
was also discussion on whether the fence was tall enough for the large dog park. Commissioner 
Vandergrift said Ms. Treglia was there and discussed the possibility of applying for a grant to plant 
more trees. Commissioner Vandergrift said there was also discussion on whether or not the builders 
are aware of what trees to plant that are indigenous to this area. 
 
Commissioner Mayhew (Calabash Fire Department) – Commissioner Mayhew shared a slide 
presentation that the Calabash Fire Department shows monthly, and it was held on May 18th. 
Commissioner Mayhew discussed the slide presentation with the Board of Commissioners. 
Commissioner Mayhew said we have a lot more homes. Commissioner Mayhew said their training 
hours went down but they expect them to go back up. Commissioner Mayhew said they are still 
working on renovating their second location. Commissioner Mayhew said they changed their logo.  
 

Consent Agenda: 

 

COMMISSIONER BRENNAN MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA. 
 

• BOC Regular Meeting Minutes of May 8, 2023 
• BOC Special Called Meeting Minutes of May 30, 2023 
• FY 2023 Audit Contract 
• Budget Amendments 2023 Closing Entries – Ordinance 23-6 

 
Commissioner Watts asked about the audit being late. Mr. Hicks said we have spoken to them 
about that.  
 
COMMISSIONER MAYHEW SECONDED THE MOTION.  MAYOR PRO TEM DAVIS 
CALLED FOR A VOTE AND MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE. 
 
Old Business: 

 

None 
 
New Business: 

 

Budget Ordinance 23-7: 
 
COMMISSIONER MAYHEW MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE BUDGET ORDINANCE 23-7 
FOR FY 2023/24. COMMISSIONER VANDERGRIFT SECONDED THE MOTION. MAYOR 
PRO TEM DAVIS CALLED FOR A VOTE AND MOTION CARRIED BY DAVIS, MAYHEW, 
VANDERGRIFT AND WATTS AS YES AND BRENNAN AS NO. 
 
Discussion of Pickleball Court: 
 
Mr. Hicks said this is a recommendation from the Parks Commission and would cost between $30-
$50k. There was discussion on adding another pickleball court at the Town Park. It was the 
consensus of the Board of Commissioners to get prices for another pickleball court. Ms. Hewett 
asked about ample parking. Mayor Pro Tem Davis said we are going to have to look at increasing 
the parking. 
 
 



5  

 
Surplus Vehicle – Resolution 23-9: 
 
COMMISSIONER WATTS MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 23-9 SURPLUS 
VEHICLE. COMMISSIONER MAYHEW SECONDED THE MOTION. MAYOR PRO TEM 
DAVIS CALLED FOR A VOTE AND MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE. 
 
Discussion of Easement Offer: 
 
Mr. Hicks said this is interesting. Mr. Hicks said you’ve heard of Maverick, who is a builder. Mr. 
Hicks said we have a good working relationship with him. Mr. Hicks said he is building a house on 
47 Bayberry. Mr. Hicks said there is a ditch on it that goes from the front and then out to the big 
canal. Mr. Hicks said this ditch drains the whole Bayberry area through that ditch on that private 
piece of property. Mr. Hicks said we had some concern about stuff getting thrown into that ditch 
and we talked to Maverick, and he pulled it out and everything has been fine. Mr. Hicks said 
NCGS 77-14 prohibits you from blocking a stream, ditch, drainage gully. Mr. Hicks said there may 
be some issues that if it did get stopped up, who would I call right before a hurricane. Mr. Hicks 
said it is private property, not ours. Mr. Hicks said he asked Maverick if he would give him an 
easement to take care of that ditch which would benefit him and the person that buys that spec 
home as they wouldn’t have to worry about it. Mr. Hicks said if a storm is coming, we could go out 
and look at it and if it needs to be cleaned out, take our equipment over there and do it. Mr. Hicks 
said in exchange for this easement though, he wants us to pave Gate 2, where he has some lots that 
he is going to be building on. Mr. Hicks said he told Maverick that he would bring it to the Board. 
There was discussion on this item. Mr. Hicks said to be fair, he does plan to pave Gate 2 in the near 
future. Mr. Hicks said the Gates are going to cost about $525,000.00 and the Courts are going to be 
less than that. Mr. Hicks said we are only going to pave what has been paved before.  
 
COMMISSIONER MAYHEW MADE A MOTION FOR THE INCLUSION OF AN EASEMENT 
FOR 47 BAYBERRY. COMMISSIONER VANDERGRIFT SECONDED THE MOTION. 
MAYOR PRO TEM DAVIS CALLED OFR A VOTE AND MOTION CARRIED BY 
UNANIMOUS VOTE.  
 
Commissioner Watts asked about the easement on Calabash Drive. Mr. Hicks said he would get 
Phil Norris to take a look at that. 
 
Public Comment: 

 

Dan Conte, 1434 Fencepost Lane – Mr. Conte said you guys did a great job today. Mr. Conte said 
as far as the pickleball court, when it gets bid would also consider the parking, so we have a full 
package. 
 
Ken Frost, 257 Downing Glen Place – Mr. Frost said you talked a lot about paving and sealing. Mr. 
Frost said the roads in The Farm are in terrible condition. Mr. Frost said there are cracks 
everywhere. Mr. Frost asked if there are any plans to address this. Mr. Frost said the storm drains 
have not been cleaned out and are there plans to clean those out. Mr. Hicks said those are not 
owned by the Town. 
 
Matt Hatez, 20 Picket Fence Lane – Mr. Hatez said he wanted to thank the Commissioners for 
working with NCDOT to lower the speed limit up to the Town Park on Thomasboro Road, he 
appreciates it. Mr. Hatez said it doesn’t do much good without monitoring and enforcing it. Mr. 
Hatez said whether it be the Brunswick County Sheriff’s or Highway Patrol, we need to get those 
guys out there. Mr. Hatez said it’s still a speedway. Mr. Hatez said thank you for the “No Thru 



6  

Traffic Signs” at The Farm. Mr. Hatez said when you discussed it originally, there were going to be 
weight limits added to those signs and what happened with that. Mr. Hatez asked why the stop sign 
was put at Pinewood and Thicketwood. Mr. Hatez asked if the Town Board would entertain putting 
stop signs in The Farm. Mr. Hicks said we would consider anything that would be brought by the 
POA. Mr. Hatez asked if Sunfield at Persimmon is ever going to get taken care of. Mr. Hatez asked 
if the Town was going to put the signs in at The Farm according to NCDOT standards. Mr. Hicks 
said Mr. Grant is supposed to get back with him on that. 
 

Mayor & Board of Commissioner Comments: 

 

Commissioner Brennan – None 
 
Commissioner Watts- None 
 
Commissioner Vandergrift – Commissioner Vandergrift said at our last meeting, we discussed 
SeeClickFix and getting notices out. Commissioner Vandergrift said she talked to the association 
and the next day, the information was sent out and placed on the bulletin board. 
 
Commissioner Mayhew – Commissioner Mayhew wanted to thank everybody for coming. 
Commissioner Mayhew said she wanted to mention the Town website. Commissioner Mayhew 
said a few months back we were looking to update our website. Commissioner Mayhew said she 
went on some websites of other small towns in the area. Commissioner Mayhew said our town is 
more transparent than any of them. Commissioner Mayhew said she couldn’t find financials for a 
lot of the towns. Commissioner Mayhew said you get to see what we get. Commissioner Mayhew 
said everything is on there, our packets are on there, minutes of our meetings, notices of when we 
are having special called meetings. Commissioner Mayhew said so check it out. Commissioner 
Mayhew said the website will be getting better. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Davis – Mayor Pro Tem Davis said please go to our website, there is so much 
information on there. Mayor Pro Tem Davis said we are so transparent about everything. Mayor 
Pro Tem Davis thanked everyone for coming. 
 

Closed Session Pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(6) Personnel: 

 

None  
 
Adjourn:  
 
COMMISSIONER BRENNAN MADE A MOTION TO ADOURN THE JUNE 12, 2023, 
REGULAR MEETING AT 11:28 A.M. MAYOR PRO TEM DAVIS SECONDED THE 
MOTION. MAYOR PRO TEM DAVIS CALLED FOR A VOTE AND MOTION CARRIED BY 
UNANIMOUS VOTE.                           
                                         
      ________________________________ 
      Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
Submitted by: 
Nicole L. Hewett, Assistant Town Administrator/Town Clerk   



1 
 

TOWN OF CAROLINA SHORES 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING MINUTES 

June 26, 2023 

11:00 a.m.   

DRAFT 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Davis called the June 26, 2023, meeting to order at 11:00 a.m. Commissioners 
present: Bill Brennan, Beverly Mayhew, and Marlene Vandergrift. Also, present: Chad Hicks, 
Town Administrator and Nicole Hewett, Assistant Town Administrator/Town Clerk. 
 

Members Absent:  Commissioner Debbie Watts 
 
Also Absent:  None 
 
Closed Session Pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(6) Personnel: 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Davis said he does not feel the Board of Commissioners needs to go into Closed 
Session as predicted. Mayor Pro Tem Davis said at the Human Resources Committee meeting, he 
and Commissioner Brennan agreed to recommend to the Board of Commissioners a 4% across the 
board raise. Mayor Pro Tem Davis said we have evaluation sheets, but we’ve always done this 
across the board. Mayor Pro Tem Davis said so the Human Resources Committee wants to 
recommend a 4% raise for all employees and of course, the 6% COLA that they are already 
getting which comes out to a 10% raise for every employee in this Town. Mr. Hicks said we 
definitely have one of the best groups that he has ever worked with.  
 
MAYOR PRO TEM DAVIS MADE A MOTION THAT THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
GRANT A 4% MERIT RAISE FOR ALL EMPLOYEES FOR THE UPCOMING FISCAL 
YEAR. COMMISSIONER BRENNAN SECONDED THE MOTION. MAYOR PRO TEM 
DAVIS CALLED FOR A VOTE AND MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE. 
       
Adjourn: 

 
COMMISSIONER BRENNAN MADE A MOTION TO ADJOURN THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS SPECIAL CALLED MEETING OF JUNE 26, 2023, AT 11:02 A.M. 
MAYOR PRO TEM DAVIS SECONDED THE MOTION.  MAYOR PRO TEM DAVIS 
CALLED FOR A VOTE AND MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE. 
 

                                                                                         

            ___________________________ 
                 Mayor Pro Tem 
 

Submitted by: 
Nicole Hewett, Assistant Town Administrator/Town Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Discussion of Town Hall Security System 
 



NC LICENSE #‐637CSA / #‐2176CSA 
ELECT. LIC. #10174‐SP‐FA/LV 

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION – YOU, THE BUYER, MAY CANCEL THIS TRANSACTION AT ANY TIME PRIOR TO MIDNIGHT OF THE THIRD BUSINESS DAY 
AFTER THE DATE OF THIS TRANSACTION. 

Revised 02/2018

HOLMES ELECTRIC INC. dba HOLMES SECURITY SYSTEMS 
407 Ray Avenue, Fayetteville, NC   28301 •  Tel:  (910) 483‐6922 – (800) 426‐9388 

ALARM SYSTEM CONDITIONAL SALES CONTRACT 
Agreement dated _________________________________________, by and between HOLMES ELECTRIC, INC. dba HOLMES SECURITY SYSTEMS (herinafter 
referred to as “HSS”; “ALARM COMPANY” or “SELLER”) and  

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________, 
     (Buyer / Legal Name)                                                        (Billing Address)                                                       (City, State, Zip Code+Four) 
(hereinafter referred to as “PURCHASER” or “BUYER”).  Physcial address of premises on which work is to be done:  

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________, 
    (Site Name if Different From Above) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   
   (Street Address)                                                                                       (City)                                      (State)                            (Zip Code) 
WHEREAS, the Purchaser hereby purchases the following described Holmes Security System as itemized below, hereinafter called the “Property,” such purchase being 
upon the following terms and conditions and those printed on the reverse side hereof which Purchaser acknowledges reading. 

DESCRIPTION OF ALARM SYSTEM 
INSTALL 
______ ________________________Control with back-up battery for power failure ___________________________________________________________________ 
______ ________________________ Siren driver and _______________ _________________and _________________   ________________siren speakers 
______ Digital touch pads for arm and disarm use #____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______ Door and window contacts to detect opening #__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______ Audio glass breaking sensors #______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______ Passive infrared intrusion detectors #__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______ Panic/Hold-Up/Medical buttons ______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______ Smoke detectors #________________________________________ ______ Manual Pull Station #_________________________________________ 
______ Heat Detectors #_______________________________________ ______ Horn/Strobe Warming Device #_________________________________ 
______ Zone Expander #_______________________________________ ______ Strobe Only Warning Device #__________________________________ 
______ GSM/CDMA RADIO #___________(This device is provided in accordance with Section 11 of Monitoring Contract and remains the property of Alarm Company) 
_______________________________________________________      _____________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________      ______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________      ______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________      ______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________      ______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________      ______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________      ______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________      ______________________________________________________________________ 

A. Materials…………………………………………………………….............… $ ___________ Monitoring Rate: 
B.  Labor …………………………………………………………………………… $____________ Monthly ____________  Qrtly____________ Yearly____________ 
C.  Sales Tax………………………………………………………………….….… $____________ 
D.  Monitoring frm ____/____/____  thru ____/____/____............................. $____________ This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within 30 days. 
E. Total…………………………………………………………………………….. $____________
F.  Down Payment with Order……………………………………………………. $____________ 
G. Unpaid Cash Balance

 (item E. less item F.)………………………………………………………….. $____________ 

Balance as follows:__________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS CONTRACT. READ THEM BEFORE YOU SIGN THIS CONTRACT. BUYER ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIVING A 

FULLY EXECUTED COPY OF THIS CONTRACT AT TIME OF EXECUTION. 

HOLMES SECURITY SYSTEMS: PURCHASER:   ______________________________________/___________
(Signature)   (Date)

By:_________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________
(Printed Name) (Printed Name)

Service Office: 

 407 Ray Avenue, Fayetteville, NC 28301 
     109 Hinton Ave Ste 12, Wilmington, NC 28403 

Purchaser hereby acknowledges receipt, at the time of execution 
of this contract, an exact copy hereof, completely filled in, and 
acknowledges that he has read the terms and conditions printed 
on the reverse side hereof. 



Alarm System Conditional Sales Contract Page Two: ___________________________________ 

Revised 02/2018 

1. NO WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS: PURCHASER'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY: 
HSS does not represent nor warrant that the security equipment will prevent any loss, damage
or injury to person or property, by reason of burglary, theft, hold-up, fire or other cause, or that 
the security equipment will in all cases provide the protection for which it is installed or 
intended. Purchaser acknowledges that HSS is not an insurer, and the Purchaser assumes all 
risk for loss or damage to Purchaser's premises or its contents. HSS has made no 
representations or warranties, and hereby disclaims any warranty of merchantability or fitness 
for any particular use. Purchaser's exclusive remedy for HSS's default hereunder is to require 
HSS to repair or replace, at HSS's option, any equipment covered by this agreement which is 
non-operational. 
2. ONE YEAR LIMITED REPLACEMENT:  The Seller agrees to replace free of cost for a 
period of one (1) year from completion of Installation, any part of the security installation and/or 
system made in the structure as specified in this contract, which upon Seller’s inspection 
proves to be defective.  The Seller, however, is not responsible for equipment and/or 
components and/or installation which is rendered defective through acts of god (weather, 
lightening etc.) negligence, abuse and/or mishandling. 
3. EXCULPATORY CLAUSE: Purchaser agrees that HSS is not an insurer and no insurance 
coverage is offered herein. The security equipment is designed to reduce certain risks of loss, 
though HSS does not guarantee that no loss will occur. HSS is not assuming liability, and, 
therefore shall not be liable to Purchaser for any loss, personal injury or property damage 
sustained by Purchaser as a result of burglary, theft, holdup, fire, equipment failure, smoke, or 
any other cause, whatsoever, regardless of whether or not such loss or damage was caused 
by or contributed to by HSS's negligent performance, failure to perform any obligation or strict 
products liability. Purchaser releases HSS from any claims for contribution, indemnity or 
subrogation. 
4. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: Purchaser agrees that should there arise any liability on the
part of HSS as a result of HSS's negligent performance to any degree, failure to perform any of
HSS's obligations, equipment failure or strict products liability, that HSS's liability shall be 
limited to the sum of $250.00. 
5. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES: The parties agree that in the event Purchaser suffers damages 
as a result of HSS's negligence to any degree or failure to perform any obligation, it would be 
impractical and extremely difficult to anticipate or fix actual damages. Therefore, Purchaser 
agrees that should there arise any liability on the part of HSS, Purchaser agrees to accept 
$250.00  as liquidated damages in complete satisfaction of such liability and HSS is released 
and discharged from any further liability.
6 . ALTERATION OF PREMISES FOR INSTALLATION: HSS is authorized to make 
preparations such as drilling holes, driving nails, making attachments or doing any other thing 
necessary in HSS's sole discretion for the installation and service of the system, and HSS shall 
not be responsible for any condition created thereby as a result of such installation, service, or 
removal of the system, and Purchaser represents that the owner of the premises, if other than 
Purchaser, authorizes the installation of the communication software under the terms of this 
agreement. 
7. AUTHORITY FROM OWNER OF PREMISES:  Purchaser hereby warrants that it has full 
authority from the owner and/or any other person in control of the premises, to permit the 
installation of the system as described herein and HSS is authorized to make any alterations 
for such work necessary for the installation of the system and that HSS assumes no 
responsibility whatsoever for any condition created thereby at the time of  installation or in the 
event of removal of the system for any reason whatsoever. 
8. . PERMIT FEES: Purchaser is responsible for all permits and permit fees, agrees to file for 
and maintain any permits required by applicable law and indemnify or reimburse HSS for any 
permit fees paid by HSS during the installation. HSS shall have no liability for permit fees. 
Should HSS be required by existing or hereinafter enacted law to perform any service or 
furnish any material not specifically covered by the terms of this agreement Purchaser agrees 
to pay HSS for such service or material. 
9. PURCHASER'S DUTY TO SUPPLY ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE: 
Purchaser agrees to furnish, at Purchaser's expense, all 110 Volt AC power, electrical outlets, 
receptacles, telephone hook-ups, RJ31 Block or equivalent, internet connection, high speed 
broadband cable or DSL and IP Address, as deemed necessary by HSS in its sole discretion. 
10. LEGAL ACTION: The parties agree that due to the nature of the services to be provided 
by HSS, the payments to be made by the Subscriber for the term of this agreement pursuant to 
paragraph 3  form an integral part of HSS's anticipated profits; that in the event of 
Subscriber's default it would be difficult if not impossible to fix HSS's actual damages. 
Therefore, in the event Subscriber defaults in the payment of any charges to be paid to HSS, 
the balance of all payments for the entire term herein shall immediately become due and 
payable and HSS shall be permitted to terminate all its services under this agreement and 
remotely re-program or delete any programming without relieving Subscriber of any obligation 
herein. In the event of Subscriber's breach of this agreement, HSS may at its option either 
remove its software or deem same sold to Subscriber for the amount specified as the value of 
the equipment in addition to the liquidated damages provided for herein. Should HSS prevail in 
any litigation between the parties Subscriber shall pay HSS's legal fees. The parties waive trial 
by jury in any action between them. In any action commenced by HSS against Subscriber, 
Subscriber shall not be permitted to interpose any counterclaim.  All actions or proceedings 
against HSS must be based on the provisions of this agreement. Any other action that 
subscriber may have or bring against HSS in respect to other services rendered in connection 
with this agreement shall be deemed to have merged in and be restricted to the terms and 
conditions of this agreement. 
11. DELAY IN INSTALLATION: HSS shall not be liable for any damage or loss sustained by
Purchaser as a result of delay in installation of equipment, equipment failure, or for interruption 
of service due to electric failure, strikes, walk-outs, war, acts of God, or other causes, including 
HSS's negligence in the performance of this contract. The estimated date work is to be 
substantially completed is not a definite completion date and time is not of the essence. 
12. INSURANCE/HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT: The Purchaser shall maintain a policy of
public liability, property damage, burglary and theft insurance under which HSS is named as 
insured. and under which the insurer agrees to indemnify and hold HSS harmless from and 
against all costs, expenses including attorneys' fees and liability arising out of or based upon 
any and all claims, injuries and damages arising under this agreement, including, but not 
limited to, those claims, injuries and damages contributed to by HSS's negligent performance 
to any degree or its failure to perform any obligation. The minimum limits of liability of such 
insurance shall be one million dollars for any injury or death, and property damage, burglary 
and theft coverage in an amount necessary to indemnify Purchaser for property on its 
premises. HSS shall not be responsible for any portion of any loss or damage which is 
recovered or recoverable by the Purchaser from insurance covering such loss or damage or 
for such loss or damage against which the Purchaser is indemnified or insured. 
13. INDEMNITY /WAIVER OF SUBROGATION RIGHTS/ASSIGNMENTS: Purchaser agrees
to and shall indemnify and hold harmless HSS, its employees, agents and subcontractors, 
from and against all claims, lawsuits, including those brought by third parties or Purchaser, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees and losses, asserted against and alleged to be caused by 
HSS's performance, negligence or failure to perform any obligation under this agreement. 
Parties agree that there are no third party beneficiaries of this contract. Purchaser on its behalf
and any insurance carrier waives any right of subrogation Purchaser's insurance carrier may 

otherwise have against HSS or HSS's subcontractors arising out of this agreement or the 
relation of the parties hereto. Purchaser shall not be permitted to assign this agreement 
without written consent of HSS. HSS shall have the right to assign this contract and shall be 
relieved of any obligations herein upon such assignment. HSS shall be permitted to assign this 
contract and upon such assignment shall have no further obligation hereunder. 
14. FALSE ALARMS/PERMIT FEES: Purchaser is responsible for all alarm permits and 
permit fees, agrees to file for and maintain any permits required by applicable law and 
indemnify or reimburse HSS for any fines relating to permits or false alarms. HSS shall have 
no liability for permit fees, false alarms, false alarm fines, police or fire response, any damage 
to personal or real property or personal injury caused by police or fire department response to 
alarm, whether false alarm or otherwise, or the refusal of the police or fire department to 
respond. In the event of termination of police or fire response by the municipal police or fire 
department this contract shall nevertheless remain in full force and Purchaser shall remain 
liable for all payments provided for herein. Should HSS be required by existing or hereinafter 
enacted law to perform any service or furnish any material not specifically covered by the 
terms of this agreement Purchaser agrees to pay HSS for such service or material. 
15. HSS'S RIGHT TO SUBCONTRACT SPECIAL SERVICES: Purchaser agrees that HSS is 
authorized and permitted to subcontract any services to be provided by HSS to third parties 
who may be independent of HSS, and that HSS shall not be liable for any loss or damage 
sustained by Purchaser by reason of fire, theft, burglary or any other cause whatsoever 
caused by the negligence of third parties, and Purchaser appoints HSS to act as Purchaser's 
agent with respect to such third parties, except that HSS shall not obligate Purchaser to make 
any payments to such third parties. Purchaser acknowledges that this agreement, and 
particularly those paragraphs relating to HSS's disclaimer of warranties, exemption from 
liability, even for its negligence, limitation of liability and indemnification, inure to the benefit of 
and are applicable to any assignee, subcontractors and communication centers of HSS. 
16. PAYMENTS, LATE CHARGES & REPOSSESSION:  Upon default in the making of any 
installments under this contact, the principal then remaining shall bear interest at the rate of 
eighteen per cent (18%) per annum while such default exists.  In the event that any installment 
under this contract is not fully paid as herein specified , or on Purchaser’s failure to comply 
with the conditions hereof, or, to the extent permitted by law, in the event of the insolvency as 
determined by court action or bankruptcy of Purchaser, at the election of the holder hereof, the 
entire amount unpaid hereunder shall become due and payable forthwith, together with 
attorney’s fees not exceeding 15% of the amount due and payable under this Contract when 
referred to an attorney, not a salaried employee of the holder, for collection.  The holder may 
collect a delinquency or collection charge for default in the payment of this contract or any 
installment hereof, when such default shall have continued for a period of 10 days, such 
charge not to exceed 5% of each installment in default or the sum of the Property to said 
holder may, without notice or demand for performance or legal process, lawfully enter any 
premises where the Property may be found and take possession of it.  After said repossession 
the Property may be sold as provided in the North Carolina Uniform Commercial Code.  The 
proceeds of said sale shall be applied:  (1) to the payment of the expenses there at; (2) to the 
payment of the expenses of the retaking, keeping and storing of the Property; (3) the 
satisfaction of the balance due under this contract.  The sum, if any, remaining thereafter shall 
be distributed according to law.  Any deficiency, after application of the proceeds of said sale 
as aforesaid, as determined by law, shall be paid by Purchaser to the holder. 
17. FAILURE TO PAY CHARGES OR HONOR CONTRACT. If Purchaser fails to make any 
payment when due or to honor any other term or condition of this Contract, HSS may 
repossess the equipment without notice. Purchaser agrees to grant HSS access to premises 
and allow it to repossess the equipment. HSS has no liability if it repossesses the equipment. 
HSS is not required to redecorate or repair Purchaser’s premises as a result of repossessing 
the equipment. In addition to these remedies, HSS does not waive, and retains the right to 
exercise, any other legal remedy, including the right to charge  a late fee for each month that a 
payment is not received and/or interest on the unpaid amount and the right to report  to one or 
more consumer reporting agencies if Purchaser becomes delinquent on  account (more than 
90 days without a payment). 
18. NON-SOLICITATION. Purchaser agrees that it will not solicit for employment for itself, or
any other entity, or employ, in any capacity; any employee of HSS assigned by HSS to perform 
any service for or on behalf of Purchaser for a period of two years after HSS has completed 
providing service to Purchaser. In the event of Purchaser's violation of this provision, in 
addition to injunctive relief, HSS shall recover from Purchaser an amount equal to such 
employee's salary based upon the average three months preceding employee's termination of 
employment with HSS, times twelve, together with HSS's counsel and expert witness fees. 
19. SECURITY INTEREST/COLLATERAL: To secure Purchaser's obligations under this 
agreement Purchaser grants HSS a security interest in the security equipment installed by 
HSS and HSS is authorized to file a financing statement.  Title to the Property, and any 
additions accessions and substitutions thereto, shall remain vested in Seller until all 
agreements hereunder have been punctually performed by Purchaser and full payment, of
purchase price as required herein has been received notwithstanding any retaking or 
redelivery to Purchaser or granting of extensions of payment hereunder. 
20. TRANSFER OR ASSIGNMENT OF PROPERTY:  Purchaser shall not, without the written 
consent of the Seller, in any manner (1) assign, sell, mortgage, lease, loan or transfer this 
Contract or any interest therein or in Property covered hereby; or (2) suffer the Property to be 
encumbered or attached.  The Property shall remain personal property irrespective of the 
manner of its attachment to the realty, and the title thereto shall be and remain vested in Seller 
until purchase price thereof has been fully paid in money and Purchaser has fully complied 
with all his obligations under this Contract , and until such time title shall remain with Seller 
notwithstanding any granting of renewals or extensions hereof and notwithstanding any 
retaking of possession of the Property or redelivery of the Property to Purchaser. 
21. FULL AGREEMENT/SEVERABILITY/ CONFLICTING DOCUMENTS. This contract 
constitutes the full understanding of the parties and may not be amended or modified or 
canceled except in writing signed by both parties. Should there arise any conflict between this
agreement and Purchaser's purchase order or other document, this agreement will govern, 
whether such purchase order or document is prior to or subsequent to this agreement. This 
contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina. Should any provision of 
this agreement be deemed void, all other provisions will remain in effect. 
22:  LICENSED AND REGULATED BY:  Holmes Electric Inc., dba Holmes Security Systems 
is regulated by the N. C. Alarm Systems Licensing Board, 3101 Industrial Drive Suite 104, 
Raleigh, NC 27609 / Telephone: (919) 788-5320 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Discussion of Pickleball Court 
 



Net-Sourced, LLC
If it needs a Net, you need us!

DATE June 14, 2023
4928 Kundinger Ct Quotation # 2306142
Raleigh, NC  27606 Customer ID Carolina Shores
919-656-6059

Bill To: Quotation valid until:

Carolina Shores Prepared by: Greg Leighton
re: 974 Thomasboro Rd  SW
Calabash NC  28467
Tony Mantini  amantini@carolinashoresnc.com
910-880-5987

Comments or special instructions: 30' X 60' Pickleball Court

Description  AMOUNT

We will form, pour, finish, and paint a 30' X 60' pickleball court 
and also install a 10' fence around the court.
Form and pour a 30' X 60' X 4" concrete pad, cut expansion lines 
outside playing area, and let the concrete cure for 30 days
We will install aluminium sleeves for the aluminum pickleball net 
to prevent rusting in the salt air of the coast. 11,250.00$                
In 30 days we apply a waterproofing material to enhance paint 
bonding with the concrete followed by a resurfacer coat and 
two(2) coats of acrylic paint and the game lines.  The net will be 
installed and using sleeves maintains the concrete integrity! 10,950.00$                

Install a 10' black chain-link fence around the court (180') 13,390.00$                

TOTAL  35,590.00$                

Greg Leighton    919-656-6059   galeighton@gmail.com

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!

QUOTATION





 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Discussion of Ditch Cleaning 
 



1 
 

BRUNSWICK TRUCKING & CONTRACTING 
6967 Hughes-Smith Rd 

Ash, NC 28420 
(910) 287-4285 (Office) 

 (910) 287-6285 (Fax) 

 (910) 443-9172 (Mobile) 

 
PROPOSAL SUBMITTED TO 
Town of Carolina Shores 

PHONE 
(  )  

DATE 
6/14/23 

STREET 
200 Persimmon Rd 

EMAIL 
amantini@carolinashoresnc.com   

JOB NAME 
Ditch Cleaning  

CITY, STATE, AND ZIP 
Carolina Shores, NC 28467 

ATTENTION 
 

JOB LOCATION 
NW Drive & Golf Course             
(BEMC Right of Way) 

We hereby submit specifications and estimates for:  Furnishing all labor, materials, and equipment necessary to perform the following: 
 
 

1. Ditch Cleaning Includes Debris, Trees Growing in Ditch, Placement of Rip Rap that has 
Fallen into Stream Back on Bank, Haul Out, & Disposal. 

 
 
      

 
TOTAL $21,500.00 

     
 

We propose hereby to furnish material and labor, complete in accordance with above specifications for the sum of 
TWENTY-ONE THOUSAND, FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS & 00/00      --------         ( $21,500.00 ) 
Payment to Be Made as Follows: Upon Completion 
All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be                   Authorized      
completed in a workmanlike manner according to standard                    Signature  Gerin S. Hughes 
practices.  Any alteration from the above referenced items  
involving extra costs will become an extra charge over and above 
the estimate.  All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents, or       Note:  This proposal may be withdrawn by  
delays beyond our control.  Owner to carry fire, tornado, and other                    us if not accepted within 10 Days. 
necessary insurance.  
 
Acceptance of Proposal The above prices, specifications, and  
conditions are satisfactory and hereby accepted.  You are authorized to do 
the work as specified.  Payment will be made as outlined above.  In the             Signature____________________ 
event that any payment under this Proposal is not made when due and it 
becomes necessary for Brunswick Trucking & Contracting to institute suit in  
order to enforce collection of the payments due under the terms of this  
instrument, or otherwise retain an attorney to protect its interest, we agree to  
pay all legal expenses and a reasonable attorney’s fee incurred by Brunswick    Date of 
Trucking & Contracting in the enforcement of such payment provisions.              Acceptance__________________ 
Furthermore, in the event that any payment due under the terms of this  
Proposal is not made when due, interest shall accrue at the rate of 18% per  
annum from the date that the payment was due until the date of payment. 

 

mailto:amantini@carolinashoresnc.com




1 
 

BRUNSWICK TRUCKING & CONTRACTING 
6967 Hughes-Smith Rd 

Ash, NC 28420 
(910) 287-4285 (Office) 

 (910) 287-6285 (Fax) 

 (910) 443-9172 (Mobile) 

 
PROPOSAL SUBMITTED TO 
Town of Carolina Shores 

PHONE 
(  )  

DATE 
6/14/23 

STREET 
200 Persimmon Rd 

EMAIL 
amantini@carolinashoresnc.com   

JOB NAME 
Ditch Cleaning  

CITY, STATE, AND ZIP 
Carolina Shores, NC 28467 

ATTENTION 
 

JOB LOCATION 
Village of Calabash & Lighthouse Cove 

We hereby submit specifications and estimates for:  Furnishing all labor, materials, and equipment necessary to perform the following: 
 
 

1. Clean Ditch of Debris & Sandbars Between Village of Calabash & Lighthouse Cove. 
Trucking & Disposal Included. 

 
 
      

 
TOTAL $45,000.00 

     
 

We propose hereby to furnish material and labor, complete in accordance with above specifications for the sum of 
FORTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS & 00/00          ---------                                  ( $45,000.00 ) 
Payment to Be Made as Follows: Upon Completion 
All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be                   Authorized      
completed in a workmanlike manner according to standard                    Signature  Gerin S. Hughes 
practices.  Any alteration from the above referenced items  
involving extra costs will become an extra charge over and above 
the estimate.  All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents, or       Note:  This proposal may be withdrawn by  
delays beyond our control.  Owner to carry fire, tornado, and other                    us if not accepted within 10 Days. 
necessary insurance.  
 
Acceptance of Proposal The above prices, specifications, and  
conditions are satisfactory and hereby accepted.  You are authorized to do 
the work as specified.  Payment will be made as outlined above.  In the             Signature____________________ 
event that any payment under this Proposal is not made when due and it 
becomes necessary for Brunswick Trucking & Contracting to institute suit in  
order to enforce collection of the payments due under the terms of this  
instrument, or otherwise retain an attorney to protect its interest, we agree to  
pay all legal expenses and a reasonable attorney’s fee incurred by Brunswick    Date of 
Trucking & Contracting in the enforcement of such payment provisions.              Acceptance__________________ 
Furthermore, in the event that any payment due under the terms of this  
Proposal is not made when due, interest shall accrue at the rate of 18% per  
annum from the date that the payment was due until the date of payment. 

 

mailto:amantini@carolinashoresnc.com



	JulyAGENDA2023
	PublicCommentRes
	JulyAADMIN2023
	JUNEinspect2023
	Monthly Report 06272023
	SCHEDULE

	JuneCODE2023
	JulyFIN23
	BOC Reg Minutes 06-12-2023
	BOC Special Called Meeting Minutes 06-26-2023
	Discussion of Town Hall Security SystemCOVER
	LocksTownHall
	Discussion ofpickleballCOVER
	Copy of Calabash Shores PB Court
	Quotation

	Estimate #1411PB
	Discussion ofDITCHlCOVER
	NW Dr-Golf Course Ditch 6-14-23
	VillageDitchCounty
	Village-Lighthouse Cove Ditch 6-14-23
	Revised Hand Cleaning Ditch Work  Village Lighthouse Cove & Maintenance Road Between Northwest Drive & Golf Course

	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Yes
	address: 200 Persimmon Road,
	city state zip: Carolina SHores, NC 28467
	undefined_2: Town of Carolina Shores (Town Hall)
	Street Address: 200 Persimmon Road,
	City: Carolina Shores,
	State: N.C.
	Zip Code: 28467
	INSTALL 1: 
	1: 
	Control with backup battery for power failure 1: 
	INSTALL 2: 
	2: 
	Siren driver and: 
	Control with backup battery for power failure 2: 
	and: 
	siren speakers: 
	INSTALL 3: 
	Digital touch pads for arm and disarm use: 
	INSTALL 4: 
	Door and window contacts to detect opening: 
	INSTALL 5: 
	Audio glass breaking sensors: 
	INSTALL 6: 
	Passive infrared intrusion detectors: 
	INSTALL 7: 
	INSTALL 8: 
	PanicHoldUpMedical buttons: 
	INSTALL 9: 
	Smoke detectors: 
	1_2: 
	Manual Pull Station: 
	INSTALL 10: 
	Heat Detectors: 
	2_2: 
	HornStrobe Warming Device: 
	INSTALL 11: 
	Zone Expander: 
	This device is provided in accordance with Section 11 of Monitoring Contract and remains the property of Alarm Company: 
	Strobe Only Warning Device: 
	INSTALL 12: 
	GSMCDMA RADIO: 
	INSTALL 13: 
	1_4: (2) HU-1346PCK10 fobs (20 total) (1) OE-CLAM Cards (25 pack)
	1_3: (4) MPA1002U-MPS 2 Door control panels
	2_4: Note1: All door lock/handles must have free egress from inside of bldg.
	2_3: (5) HES520030404 Strike with adjustable faceplate
	3_2: and locked from entry side of door.
	3: (2) AC600S Mag lock (Admin front door, Public front door)
	4_2: Note2:  No guarantee on parts availibility. Price good for 60 days.   
	4: (2) EEB2 RTE Button with time (Front doors)
	5_2: Note3: Customer to provide internet connection at control panels.
	5: (2) IS310 RTE Request to exit motion (Front doors)
	6_2: Note4:  MaxProCloud fee for this site is $75.00 per month. 
	6: (7) 20tks0000 Readers
	7_2: Doors: Admin to hall, Council, Training, Inspections, Interior office
	7: (2) HUB Release button (at front desk of TH and Admin)
	8: (1) CRF300 Relay for fire alarm integration.
	undefined_3: 16,845.96
	undefined_4: 4,975.00
	Monthly: 
	Qrtly: 
	Yearly: 
	undefined_5: 1,472.91
	undefined_6: 
	undefined_7: 23,293.87
	undefined_8: 11,646.93
	undefined_9: 11,646.93
	Balance as follows 1: Upon completion
	Balance as follows 2: 
	undefined_10: 
	By 2: Ron Jackson
	Printed Name: Chad Hicks
	Agreement dated: June 28, 2023
	undefined: Town of Carolina Shores


